
 

1 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA: Tuesday, November 5, 2019, 6:00 pm 
Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Chambers (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335) 

Call to Order ___: ___ 

Commissioner Roll Call: 
     Present  Excused Comment  

Maryellen (Missy) Hill           

Amanda Babich  

Todd Iverson             

Kurt Grimmer            

Steve Nixon       

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

ITEM 2 Board Discussion 

  2.a PEG Grant Program 

ITEM 3 Adjournment ___: ___ 

 

 

AGENDA POLICY 

 No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items. 

 Public comment will be allowed on each Regular Agenda Action Item. Each speaker will be 
limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once with a total of 15 minutes per 
side. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting. 

 Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting 
of the Board of Park Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited 
to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once during the Citizen Comment period 
at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting. 

 Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 noon 
on the Tuesday preceding the Monday meeting date. 

 Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must 
provide ten (10) copies at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting. 

  

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 



 

2 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
5717 Wollochet Drive  Gig Harbor, WA  98335          

Office: 253-858-3400   Fax: 253-858-3401 

E-mail: Info@PenMetParks.org 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 

To:  District Commission 

From:  Glenn Akramoff, Interim Executive Director 

Date:  November 5, 2019 

Subject: Review Park Enhancement Grant Program 

Background/Analysis 

Since the adoption of Park Enhancement Grant (PEG, or PEG Grant) Program process and procedures 
there have been a few inquiries as to potential adjustments to certain processes. 

The policy document is included here along with the procedures and process identified in the 
information and application documents. 

Most of the smaller park improvement projects such as for Eagle Scouts are projects that staff has 
identified as improvements that the District would like to see.  Staff reviews the District Projects List 
regularly and uses that list when scouts approach the District for a project. 

If such projects require funds for the acquisition of materials, the PEG Grant is available to use, matching 
the volunteer labor and other donations with PenMet funding. 

Some scout volunteer projects (previously identified by staff as discussed above) are very dependent on 
troop availability for the work parties, and Board meetings may not align in a coordinated timeline. Staff 
would like to keep such projects moving forward with an Executive Director's approval as discussed 
below. 

Certain projects are more involved and expensive such as the Rotary, Master Gardener, School 
Playgrounds, and Sand Volleyball Court projects.  Such projects typically involve more review and 
refinement with staff before the Board is presented with a completed grant package to be considered 
for approval. 

There was a discussion about limiting PEG applications to a specific window of time during the year.  The 
observed nature of the program is that grant ideas and applications come to the District throughout the 
year.  With an observed desire to expand the awareness and availability of the program, limiting the 
application period would most likely work against that goal. 

The following PEG Applications have been received or are under consideration: 

 Eagle Scout projects for Bat Houses at Hales Pass (amendment ready, but on hold pending policy 
review) 

 Rotary Bark Park trail map and signs (ready, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Tubby’s small dog area shelter (ready, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Narrows fencing (nearly ready, put on hold pending policy review) 

 McCormick trail map and signs (preparing, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Voyager PTA Playground (being prepared for presentation at a future meeting) 

 Three other scouts currently discussing projects 
 

Recommendation 

mailto:info@PenMetParks.org


 

3 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

1. Staff requests that the Commission review the attached documents related to the Park 
Enhancement Grant Program, discuss items in this memo and provide staff direction for 
modifications to the Park Enhancement Grant Program Policy and Process. 

2. Staff will continue to regularly notify the Board of PEG grants under consideration, in progress, 
and status. 

3. Staff recommends that the Executive Director be authorized to approve PEG Grant projects 
under an amount to be determined and/or originating from the District Projects List.  Most 
scout projects have ranged from $100 to $1,600 with just one over $2,000. 
Applications will still be presented to the Board, but Director approval will enable the project to 
move forward when timing becomes an issue. 

4. Applicants will present the grant application if requested by Board. 
5. Applicants will share the completed project presentation with the Board. 
6. The annual allocation ($65,000 in past years, $25,000 in 2019) will be determined during the 

annual budget process.  
7. Staff recommends maintaining the open application period throughout the year. 
8. The PEG Program can be promoted quarterly in the Recreation Guide. 
9. Website and other communications can provide PEG Program information. 
10. Staff will provide quarterly updates on the PEG Program. 

 
Policy Implications/Support 

1. On July 16, 2012, the District approved modifications to the PEG policy for procedures and 
processes. 

2. On November 21, 2011, the District approved modifications to the PEG policy to enable the use of 
District funds to support recreation startup programs. 

3. On March 21, 2011, the District approved modifications to the PEG policy to enable the use of 
District purchasing power to assist in PEG Grant purchases. 

4. The Board requested modifications to the policy to include maintenance-related equipment in 
December 2009. 

5. The Board approved the PEG Grant Process and Procedures at the May 21, 2007, Commission 
Meeting. 

 
Should you have any questions or comments please contact me at the earliest opportunity should 
additional research be required to provide answers at the meeting: 253-858-3408 or via e-mail at 
GAkramoff@PenMetParks.org.   
 
Attachments: 
PEG Policy 
PEG Information 
PEG Application 
PEG Award Letter 
PEG Agreement 
PEG History 
PenMet Projects  

mailto:GAkramoff@PenMetParks.org


 

4 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: Tuesday, November 5, 2019, 7:00 pm 
Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Chambers (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335) 

Call to Order ___: ___ 

Commissioner Roll Call: 
     Present  Excused Comment  

Maryellen (Missy) Hill           

Amanda Babich  

Todd Iverson             

Kurt Grimmer            

Steve Nixon       

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments (three-minute time limit) 

ITEM 3 Presentations 

3.a Legislative Funds 
3.b Proclamation on Employee Values 

 3.c Executive Director Report  
 3.d Financial Report  
 3.e President’s Report 

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda  
  4.a  Approval of Meeting Minutes 
   10-1-19 Study Session and Regular 
   10-15-19 Study Session and Regular 

4.b Approval of Vouchers 
 $25,474.34 Reference number: V2019 535-V2019 552 

 $78,627.16 Reference number: V2019 553-V2019 577 

 $11,709.96 Reference number: V2019 578-V2019 583 

ITEM 5  New Business 
  5.a 1st Public Hearing and Levy Rate approval  

5.b KCDA Membership  
5.c Hales Pass Roof Contract (KCDA) 

5.d SHP Field Lighting Bid Approval  

 

ITEM 6  Comments by Board  

   

ITEM 7 Next Board Meetings: Tues. November 19th, 2019 (Study Session and Regular) at 

City Hall location  

ITEM 8 Executive Session: Consider the Qualifications of an Employee [RCW 42.30.110] 

ITEM 9 Adjournment ___: ___ 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 



 

5 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

AGENDA POLICY 

 No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items. 

 Public comment will be allowed on each Regular Agenda Action Item. Each speaker will be 
limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once with a total of 15 minutes per 
side. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting. 

 Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting 
of the Board of Park Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited 
to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once during the Citizen Comment period 
at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting. 

 Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 noon 
on the Tuesday preceding the Monday meeting date. 

 Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must 
provide ten (10) copies at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting. 

  



 

6 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

   

PROCLAMATION 

Recognizing Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
Staff Values  

 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE PENINSULA METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT, GIG HARBOR, 

RECOGNIZING PENINSULA METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT STAFF 
VALUES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) Staff has 

recognized and implemented their core values. 
 
WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) Board 

supports the betterment of its employees through staff values and commitment to each 
other. Staff values include integrity, respect, honesty, positiveness, family, trust, 
teamwork, and hard work; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) Board is 

committed to upholding staff values through continuous support and opportunity by 
providing accountably and structure to PenMet values. 

 
RESOLVED by the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) Board, 

that it hereby recognizes the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District staff values are 
accepted and supported as a Board. 

 
Approved by the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners  

this 5th Day of November 2019. 

__________________________________ 

President 

 

__________________________________           _______________________________ 

Clerk               Attest 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Commission 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 



 

7 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

8 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT: October 15-November 
2019 

EXECUTIVE 

 Report to be distributed at meeting 

ADMINISTRATION  

 Oriented two new employees – Stacie Snuffin and Jesse Savage.  I am beginning the 

hiring process for a facility coordinator and groundskeeper   

 Beginning the preliminary 2020 budget book 

MARKETING 

 16-page parks and rec guide sent to the publisher 

 Employee Spotlight in the Parks and Rec Guide (Kelly Darling) 

 Media release issued for Community Recreation Center 

 Media release issued for Executive Director search/open house 

 Interview w/ Peninsula Gateway and E.D. 

 Frontpage in local news for Community Rec Center 

 Implementing pages on website: other properties/special populations/teen activities 

CAPITAL 

 Opening Bids for SHP Turf & Parking Lighting Project on Thursday, 10/10. 

Permits submitted. 

 Getting bids for Hales Pass roof replacement. 

 RFQ going out for Hales Pass renovation design. 

 Discussion of Memorials and Donations Policy to continue. 

 Discussion of PEG Grant Policy continuing. 

 City of Gig Harbor updating Cushman Trail Map, incorporating route through CRC as part of a 

project to add Emergency Locator Signs every ¼ mile along the trail. 

 Most computers have been upgraded to Windows 10 (Windows 7 won’t be supported after 

2019).  Other computer upgrades in progress. 

 Finalizing post-move IT and phone adjustments. 

PEG Grants 

 Eagle Scout projects for Bat Houses at Hales Pass (ready, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Rotary Bark Park trail map and signs (ready, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Tubby’s small dog area shelter (ready, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Narrows fencing (nearly ready, but on hold pending policy review) 

 McCormick trail map and signs (preparing, but on hold pending policy review) 

 Off Leash Area Obstacle Course (after review, rejected by users/professionals consulted) 

 Voyager PTA Playground (being prepared for presentation at future meeting) 

 Three other scouts currently discussing projects 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 



 

9 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Volunteer Projects 

 Conducted successful Orca Recovery Day (10/19) at DeMolay Sandspit with Pierce 

Conservation District. Washington Conservation Corp crew and PenMet Maintenance 

crew removed blackberries in preparation for native plantings on ORD.  The day saw 9 

staff from PCD and PenMet support 79 volunteers planting over 150 plants. 

 Working with community service people at Narrows continues. 

 PHS runners trimmed trails at McCormick Forest; GHHS to trim trails at Rotary Bark 

Park. 

MAINTENANCE & FACILITIES 

 Removed desks, chairs and cubicles from old Admin and Facilities office for surplus 

 Paint and cleaning prep in old offices 

 Washing windows, light fixtures in Pavilion 

 Ron had a Job Shadow student from Henderson Bay High School 

 Removed downed Maple Tree from McCormick Forest Park trails 

 Arranged pick up for two surplused vehicles Truck #101 and PenMet trailer 

 Last Fertilizer application at Sehmel and Rosedale Park 

 Toilet repair at football field restrooms 

 Leaf clean up at all parks 

 Training new employee Jesse Savage Facilities Specialist 

RECREATION 
 Monster Mash Bash was a HUGE success.  It was a Family event that sold out and everyone 

loved all that we had to offer.  It was held at Ocean 5 which has become a great Community 

Partner and we are looking to hold many more events there with them. 

 Gymnastics is full for the Fall Classes which just started.  It continues to be one of the most 

popular programs we offer. 

 We worked with our contractor French Toast Theater to put on a Haunted House at Hales Pass 

for the community on 10/26.  It was a big success with about 150 people coming through the 

doors. 

 Staff is starting to work on Santa’s Breakfast, which will be held at Goodman Middle School this 

year on December 7th from 9-11 am. 

 Half of our basketball leagues are full and have started waiting lists with the deadline not until 

November 11th.  Our 1st-4th Grade Boys and Girls are the largest we have ever had, and we are 

excited about the growth and future of our leagues. 

  



 

10 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

STUDY SESSION MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 1st, 2019, 6:15 pm  

Gig Harbor Civic Center Community Rooms A/B (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 
98335) 

 Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Hill at 6:15 pm. 

Commissioners Present: 

Maryellen (Missy) Hill 

Amanda Babich 

Steve Nixon 

Kurt Grimmer 

Todd Iverson  

Staff: 

Glenn Akramoff 

Eric Guenther 

Chuck Cuzzetto 

Elaine Sorensen 

Michael Schick 

Ron Martinez  

Ed Lewis 

Kelly Darling 

Aiden Krug 

 

 

 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA: 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda: Commissioner Grimmer made a motion to 

approve the agenda, Commissioner Nixon seconded; the motion was approved with a 

5-0 vote. 

ITEM 2.a Staff Report: 2020 New Budget Process 

Executive Director Akramoff introduced the new budget process. The budget process is 

created to improve transparency, both to the board and to the public. Improve decision 

making and budget oversight. Decision cards were presented at the end of each 

department’s section for the Board to review and give direction to staff in the next Board 

meeting on October 15th, 2019.   

 

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________ 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

President       Clerk 

Submitted by: Gamani Hayden 

 

                           

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

  

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

 PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
 253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

 www.penmetparks.org 

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 



 

11 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Tuesday, October 1st, 2019, 7:15 pm 

Gig Harbor Civic Center Community Rooms A/B (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335) 

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Hill at 7:16 pm 

Commissioners Present: 

Maryellen (Missy) Hill 

Amanda Babich 

Steve Nixon 

Kurt Grimmer 

Todd Iverson  

Staff: 

Glenn Akramoff 

Eric Guenther 

Chuck Cuzzetto 

Elaine Sorensen 

Michael Schick 

Ron Martinez  

Ed Lewis 

Kelly Darling 

Aiden Krug 

 

 

 

 

Citizens: 

John Glass 

Bill Sehmel 

Laurel Kinsburg 

Natalie Wimberley 

Michelle Matheson 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Grimmer made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner 

Babich. The agenda was approved with a 5-0 vote. 

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments 

Laurel Kinsburg thanked the Board and staff for the hard work they have been putting in. 

She was pleased that the website was up to date and everything was easy to find. 

Commissioner Hill has participated in many events put on by the parks and recreation of 

Gig Harbor. Wants to focus on partnerships. 

ITEM 3 Presentations 

3.a  Executive Director Report  

Glenn Akramoff shared that President Hill and himself presented to the community 

development committee and discussed PEG grants. Venue for strategic planning retreat 

details will be coming out shortly. The 15th is the next board meeting and study session. The 

23rd of October is going to be the open house and then the 24th is going to be the final 

interview. 

3.b President Report 

President Hill spoke with admin support and got some ideas regarding hosting agendas. 

Admin support visited other city council areas to get ideas. Now, President Hill and others 

are looking at adopting other ideas regarding the agenda and cutting cost. This process 

potentially will become a decision card. 

ITEM 4  Consent Agenda 

4.a Approval of Meeting Minutes 

 8-20-19 Regular and Study Session (pg.15-17) 

 9-17-19 Regular and Study Session (pg. 18-19) 

4.b Approval of Vouchers 

 $21,441.32 Reference numbers: V2019-446-V2019-451 (pg. 20-21) 



 

12 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 $145,204.21 Reference Numbers: V2019-452-V2019-484 (pg. 22-23) 

 $83,046.23 Reference numbers: V2019-485-V2019-511 (pg.24-25) 

President Hill made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner Grimmer. 

The agenda was approved with a 5-0 vote. 

4.c Approval of Consent Agenda 

ITEM 5 New Business 

5.a Demarche Contract Scope for Organizational support  

E.D. Akramoff put together a draft scope for review. October 25th is the current agreement 

to not exceed the amount. The board is bringing it back for review on the 15th of October.  

ITEM 6   Comments by Board/Subcommittee Reports 

Commissioner Nixon shared that the new office is very welcoming and is happy with the 

improvements coming. Michelle Matheson volunteered at Narrows Park, she was very 

pleased to see the hard work and the organization of everything.  

6.a Community Center: Setting schedules for meetings 

6.b Marketing: Social Media is growing, and the history of the district video is in 

the works.  

6.c Fundraising Under Development (Hill):  

ITEM 7 Next Board Meeting: Tues, October 15th, 2019: Study Session (6:00 pm) and 

Regular (7:00 pm) at new City Hall location 

ITEM 8 Executive Session: Real Estate was considered [RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)] and 
Employee Evaluation [RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)] 
ITEM 9 Adjournment 

Commissioner Hill adjourned the meeting at 7:45 pm.  

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________ 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

President       Clerk 

Submitted by: Gamani Hayden 

 

  



 

13 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

                           

STUDY SESSION MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 15th, 2019, 6:00 pm  

Gig Harbor Civic Center Community Room A/B (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 
98335) 

 Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Hill at 6:01 pm. 

Commissioners Present: 

Maryellen (Missy) Hill 

Amanda Babich 

Steve Nixon 

Kurt Grimmer 

Todd Iverson  

Staff: 

Glenn Akramoff 

Eric Guenther 

Elaine Sorensen 

Michael Schick 

Ed Lewis 

Aiden Krug 

 

 

 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA: 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda: Commissioner Grimmer made a motion to 

approve the agenda, Commissioner Nixon seconded; the motion was approved with a 

4-0 vote. 

ITEM 2 Board Discussion 

 2.a 2020 Budget Process 

E.D. Akramoff gave a brief overview of what would be discussed in sections 2.b and 2.c.  

 2.b Capital Program Review 

Special Projects Manager Eric Guenther presented the Board with various future projects 

listed on the 5-year plan and other lower-priority projects discussed previously. The Board 

discussed the level of priority for the projects listed on the 5-year plan and decided on the 

following rankings: 1. SHP Turf Lighting, 2. HP Arletta Roof, 3. Hales Pass School House, 

4. Recreation Center, 5. Rosedale Hall Design, 6. Harbor Family Park MP, 7. Peninsula 

Gardens, 8. Rosedale Hall Renovation. The Board will continue to review these projects in 

the future to update the priority level. 

 2.c Decision Card Review 

E.D. displayed the decision card list given to the Board throughout the year on screen. 

Given the option of yes and no, Commissioners decided what would be included in the 

budget book.  

 

The following items were added: a recreation assistant, the senior program, strategic 

planning, system implantation, a cost recovery fee study, accounting software, a finance 

consultant, construction project vehicle, underwriting fee bonds, snowplow/de-icer (changed 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 



 

14 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

from $27,000 to $9,000), sweeper, on-call pay, re-class seasonal employees, salary survey 

results. Decisions that needed more discussion included: sports fee reduction (3-2 in favor), 

a marketing intern (3-2 in favor), Decisions that were turned down included: Gator 

attachments     

ITEM 4 Adjournment 

Commissioner Hill adjourned the meeting at 7:00 

pm. 

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: 

 

 

President Clerk 

    Submitted by: Gamani Hayden 

  

 
 



 

15 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 15th, 2019, 7:00 pm 
Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Community Room A/B (3510 Grandview St. Gig Harbor, WA 

98332) 

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Hill at 7:05 pm 

Commissioners Present:   Staff:  

Maryellen (Missy) Hill Glenn Akramoff  

Kurt Grimmer Steve Nixon                   Elaine Sorensen 

Amanda Babich                                    Eric Guenther 

Todd Iverson                                        Ed Lewis  

Citizens:                                              Mike Schick 

Bill Sehmel                                           Aiden Krug 

Denise Rosnick 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: 

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Grimmer made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner 

Nixon. The agenda was approved with a 5-0 vote. 

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments 

Bill Sehmel thanked PenMet and the Greater Gig Harbor Foundation for recent successful 

events such as the Scarecrow Festival and Cider Swig. Sehmel voiced that the Board 

should consider a voter-approved bond for the Community Recreation Center.  

Denise Rosnick voiced his dissatisfaction with staff doing maintenance at Rosedale in the 

mornings when he and his social tennis group play, proposed to make his group an official 

activity on the schedule to alleviate the issue.  

ITEM 3 Presentations 

3.a  Executive Director Report  

Continuous work on the Peninsula School District property exchange will be presented to 

the Board on November 5th for final consideration. New employees, Administration Assistant 

starting October 28th and new facility maintenance worker starting November 4th. 

Wednesday, October 23th Executive Director Open House event at 4:30-6:30 located at Gig 

Harbor Fire Station Headquarters. Executive Director interviews on 24th at PenMet 

administration office. Commissioner Babich made a record to change the off-leash area 

obstacle course PEG Grant from rejected to did not meet criteria.      

3.b Financial Report  

Deputy Executive Director Elaine Sorenson reported no concerns with the general fund, 

projecting a small surplus at the end of the year. After reporting all department funds to the 

Board, Sorenson updated members on the longevity of the SHP turf and playground 

equipment.   

 3.c President Report  

Hill thanked the staff members and other commissioners who attended the Board Retreat 

on October 12th, members did not accomplish all topics on the strategic planning session 

agenda so the items that need to be addressed will become future study sessions or 

another strategic planning meeting. President Hill is in the process of scheduling a regional 

meeting with Peninsula School District, City of Gig Harbor, Gig Harbor Fire Department, 

park districts in the area, and more might be added leading up to the meeting. Added a 

quick note that The Scarecrow festival was a very successful event due to the hard work 

and dedication of the staff.      



 

16 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

ITEM 4  Consent Agenda 

4.a Approval of Meeting Minutes 

10-1-19 Study and Regular Meeting Minutes pulled for corrections and planned for a 

return to Board on Nov. 5. 

4.b Approval of Vouchers 

 $57,094.27 Reference numbers: V2019-512-V2019-519 

 $27,655.68 Reference Numbers: V2019-520-V2019-528 

 $70,283.09 Reference numbers: V2019-529-V2019-534 

President Hill made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner Babich. 

The agenda was approved with a 5-0 vote. 

ITEM 5 Discussion 

5.a Community Recreation Center Property Acquisition Decision  

E.D. Akramoff provided the Board with a CRC presentation giving highlights about the 

different aspects of the project and what has been discussed previously. President Hill 

made the motion to approve the CRC property acquisition decision, the Board unanimously 

approved Resolution 2019-14 (5-0) to execute the amendment to Purchase and Sale 

Agreement and closing documents.     

ITEM 6 Old Business 

 6.a Contract Amendment: Demarche Services     

Adjustment to interim Executive Director transitional period pending the arrival date of the 

New Executive Director. Commissioner Babich made a motion to approve the contract 

amendment, seconded by Commissioner Grimmer. The amendment was approved with a 

5-0 vote. 

 6.b Contract Amendment: Snodgrass Freeman Associates, & Consultants 

Increase the amount of the contract amount by $31,798.00. From 655,569.00 to 

687,367.00. The initial contract timeline is not an issue. Commissioner Grimmer made a 

motion to pass the contract amendment, seconded by Commissioner Nixon. The 

amendment was approved with a 5-0 vote. 

ITEM 7 Comments by Board/Subcommittee Reports 

Commissioner Nixon wanted to thank the staff again for putting on a very successful 

Scarecrow event and strategic planning board retreat. Commissioner Babich asked 

subcommittee reports to be struck from future agendas until a study session is planned on 

subcommittees. The Board agreed and future agendas will just be comments by the board.   

           7.b Marketing - none 

7.c Fundraising Under Development -none 

ITEM 8 Next Board Meeting: Tues, Nov 5th, 2019: Study Session (6:00 pm) and 

Regular (7:00 pm) at City Hall location 

ITEM 9 Executive Session: none 
ITEM 10 Adjournment 

President Hill adjourned the meeting at 7:43 pm.  

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________ 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

President       Clerk 

Submitted by: Gamani Hayden  



 

17 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

18 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

19 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

20 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

21 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

22 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

23 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

5717 Wollochet Drive  Gig Harbor, WA  98335          

Office: 253-858-3400   Fax: 253-858-3401 

E-mail: Info@PenMetParks.org 

 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 

To:  District Commission 

From:  Elaine Sorensen, Deputy Executive Director – Finance & Personnel 

Date:  November 5, 2019 

Subject: 2020 Proposed Budget Presentation 

Background/Analysis 

At their meeting held on 10/1/2019 and 10/15/2019, the Board reviewed and discussed the 

2020 general fund budget, capital budget and decision cards with departmental managers in 

attendance.   

On September 17, 2019 the Board was presented with the 2020 preliminary budget including 

the following funds:   

 General Fund  $4,059,227 

 Recreation Fund  $511,283 

 Capital Fund  $3,445,702 

Policy Implications/Support 

 The Board of Park Commissioners received the Preliminary Budget document on 
September 17, 2019. 

 Staff conducted a full budget presentation and discussion on October 1, 2019 of the 
general fund budget. 

 Staff conducted a full budget presentation and discussion on October 15, 2019 of the 
capital fund budget and decision cards.   

 The budget is required by state law. 

 The budget must be adopted as a balanced budget and must be in place prior to the 
expenditure of any District Funds. 

Recommendation 

 Staff recommends that the Board of Park Commissioners review and conduct the first 
public hearing for the 2020 proposed budget.  The proposed budget is $7,504,929 which 
meets direction set by the Board of Park Commissioners that the 2020 budgeted levy 
dollar amount be our statutory maximum rate. 

 

Should you have any questions or comments please feel free to contact me at 253.858.3400, ext. 1223 

or via e-mail at esorensen@penmetparks.org.  

mailto:info@PenMetParks.org


 

24 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

RESOLUTION NO. R2019-016 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF PENMET PARKS ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2020 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) 

has recommended a balanced budget and estimate of monies required to meet public expenses 

for the 2020 calendar year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Clerk of the Board did cause to be published in official legal notices of the local 

newspaper on October 17, 2019 and October 24, 2019 and October 31, 2019 and November 7, 

2019 that the Board of Park Commissioners would meet on November 5, 2019, and November 

19, 2019, giving taxpayers an opportunity to be heard regarding the proposed 2020 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners did meet at the time specified and offered the 

opportunity for interested taxpayers, citizens and residents to comment on the proposed budget 

as detailed below: 

 

November 5, 2019  Public Hearing on Preliminary 2020 Budget 

November 19, 2019  Public Hearing on 2020 Budget 

    Public Hearing on Property Tax Levy 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed 2020 budget does not exceed the lawful limit of taxation as allowed to 

be levied by PenMet Parks for the purposes set forth in the budget, and estimated expenditures 

set forth in the budget is necessary to provide park and recreation services to the citizens and 

residents of PenMet Parks during the 2020 calendar year; NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of PenMet Parks to approve and adopt the 

2020 budget in the amounts noted in Exhibit A attached to and incorporated in this resolution. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of Board of Park Commissioners of 

the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on November 19, 2019.  

 

       

President 

 



 

25 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

              

Clerk          Attest 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Commission 

 

Date of publication of notice of Public Hearings:   October 17, 2019 

October 24, 2019 

October 31, 2019 

November 7, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

2020 Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Final Budget 

General Fund Budget Amount: $3,956,617 

Capital Program Amount: $3,548,312 

Total: $ 7,504,929 

  



 

26 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 

RESOLUTION NO. R2019-017 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF PENMET PARKS ADOPTING THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR COLLECTION IN CALENDAR YEAR 2020 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District (PenMet Parks) 

has conducted public hearings on November 5, 2019, and November 19, 2019 to consider all relevant 

evidence and testimony regarding regular property taxes to be levied in 2019 for collection in 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District’s actual levy amount from the previous year was $6,376,224.81; and 

 

WHEREAS the population of the District is more than 10,000; NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of PenMet Parks that an increase in the regular property 

tax levy is hereby authorized for the levy to be collected in the 2020 tax year.  The dollar amount of the 

increase over the actual levy amount from the previous year shall be $371,072.34 which is a percentage 

increase of 5.8% from the previous year. This increase is exclusive of additional revenue resulting from 

new construction, improvements to the property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value 

of state assessed property, any annexations that have occurred and refunds made. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on November 19, 2019.  

 

       

President 

 

              

Clerk          Attest 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Commission 

 

  



 

27 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

Amount levied in preceding year:   $6,376,224.81 

Implicit Price Deflator (IPD):    1.396% 

Current budget certification:    $7,504,929 

 

Date of publication of notice of Public Hearings:   October 17, 2019 

October 24, 2019 

October 31, 2019 

November 7, 2019 

 

Amended Levy Increase: $ 

Percentage Levy Increase: % 

 

 

 

              

Executive Director                          Attest 

 

  



 

28 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

29 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 



 

30 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

  



 

31 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 



 

32 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

33 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

34 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

35 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 

 

  



 

36 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

37 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

38 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

  



 

39 | P a g e   A g e n d a  1 1 - 5 - 1 9  
 

 


